UNITED
NATIONS CAT

: : Distr.
Convention against Torture CENERAL
and Other Cruel, Inhuman

CAT/ C/ SR. 336

or Degrading Treatment 20 November 1998

or Punishment ENGLSH

Original: FRENCH

COW TTEE AGAI NST TORTURE
Twenti eth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE FI RST PART (PUBLIC)* OF THE 336t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Friday, 15 May 1998, at 10 a.m

Chai rman: M. BURNS

CONTENTS

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 19 OF THE
CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Second periodic report of Israel

*  The summary record of the second part (closed) of the meeting appears
as docunent CAT/ C/ SR. 336/ Add. 1.

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmittee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 98-16189 (E)



CAT/ C/ SR. 336
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.15 a.m

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 19 OF THE
CONVENTI ON

Second periodic report of Israel (CAT/C 33/Add. 3)

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, M. Baker, M. Shaffer and
M. Galilee (Israel) took places at the Conmmttee table.

2. M. BAKER (lsrael) said he wished to stress that his Governnment, which
took its obligations under the Convention very seriously, had always
cooperated with the Committee, and hoped to conduct a candid, constructive

di al ogue during the consideration of the second report. When the previous
reports had been submitted, the del egation of Israel had described the dilemm
faced by that country, which nust confront the terrorismthat inperilled its
security while respecting international human rights standards, anmong themin
particul ar the provisions of the Convention. At the close of the

consi deration of the previous report, the Comm ttee had acknow edged t hat

di l emma, but had not, to the surprise of the Israeli Government, recognized a
central conponent of the Israeli |egal position, nanely, that the

i nterrogati on procedures used to prevent acts of terrorismin no way
constituted torture as defined by article 1 of the Convention or cruel

i nhuman or degrading treatnent within the meaning of article 16. That
position derived froma legal interpretation of the Convention which would
require, on the part of the nenbers of the Committee, an in-depth analysis of
the neaning of the terns used in the Convention and of the intentions of the
States that had drafted it, as well as of the scope of articles 1 and 16. The
concl usi ons and recomrendations forrmul ated by the Cormittee at the cl ose of
the consi deration of the previous report suggested that no such in-depth

anal ysis had been conducted. Any interpretation of interrogation procedures
must take into account the restrictive scope of the prohibition set out in
article 1, in particular since that definition included an inportant specific
criterion, that of the severity of the pain or suffering. Every act or
nmeasure should be exanmined on its nerits and in relation to the circunstances,
and a sweeping generalized interpretation did not fulfil the requirenents of
the Convention. The same comment was applicable nutatis mutandis to the

i mpl enentation of article 16. Since the Cormittee was not a political organ
of the United Nations, but a specialized expert forum whose conpetence was
recogni zed in a specific field, it should avoid taking generalized positions.
The di scussions that had taken place during the consideration of the previous
report clearly denonstrated the need to study each interrogation procedure on
its merits and not to make hasty generalizations. On the basis, for exanple,
of allegations by non-governnental organizations, the Comittee had determn ned
that subjecting detainees to very loud nusic constituted a formof torture or
cruel treatment, even though his del egati on had expl ai ned that the vol ume was
turned up high in order to prevent conmunication between detai nees while under
i nvestigation. It was not a measure used to extract information or
confessions, and it therefore did not fall under article 1. Before reaching
its conclusions, had the Commttee considered the criterion of severity of
suffering set out in the Convention? The Committee had |ikew se determ ned

t hat hoodi ng det ai nees under special conditions was tantamunt to torture, but
had not inquired whether that practice was used to obtain information or




CAT/ C/ SR. 336
page 3

whet her, as the Israeli delegation had explained, its purpose was to prevent
det ai nees from comuni cati ng anong thenmsel ves. The Committee had chosen to
base its determination on allegations made by non-governmental organizations
and disregard the State party's explanation, for reasons that were not
detailed in the conclusions. He instanced another conclusion which had
surprised the Israeli authorities: the Committee had determ ned that exposing
detainees to “cold air to chill” constituted a violation of articles 1 and 16,
al t hough Israeli officials had consistently denied the use of such a
procedure.

3. He wished to reiterate a statenment nmade by the Israeli delegation during
the ei ghteenth session, namely, that prohibition of torture formed part of
Israeli law. Accordingly, officials who conducted interrogations were not

aut hori zed, and never had been authorized, to use torture, even in cases where
the use of such procedures m ght have prevented terrible attacks. The use of
cruel, inhuman or degradi ng procedures was |i kew se prohibited during
interrogations. Nor had Israel ever clainmed that the struggle against
terrorismconstituted an exceptional circunmstance that justified the use of
torture.

4, Both the report subnmitted to the Commttee and the statement nmade by the
I sraeli delegation had described the circunstances under which the Landau
Commi ssion's gui delines authorized the use of “noderate physical pressure”

In formul ati ng those guidelines, the Landau Conm ssion had taken into

consi deration international and regional human rights treaties as well as
travaux préparatoires, with a viewto ensuring that interrogation nethods
conplied with international standards. The Commttee’'s general determ nation
to the effect that Israeli interrogation procedures constituted violations of
articles 1 and 16 raised the question whether it had undertaken a close

anal ysis of each of the acts attributed to the Israeli authorities. The
guestion m ght al so be asked whether the Committee had taken note of the

par agraphs in the special report of 1997 (CAT/C/ 33/ Add. 2/ Rev. 1) that discussed
t he gui delines established in accordance with the criteria set out in the
Landau report for the interrogation of suspects by the General Security
Service (GSS). Those guidelines established that such pressure nust never
reach the | evel of physical torture or ill-treatment. It was of course
possible that GSS officials mght conmt irregularities, but in that case they
were puni shed by the authorities for breaking the law. It should be very
clear that Israel neither permtted nor justified torture or cruel, inhuman or
degrading treatnent. Article 1 of the Convention inplied that pressure that
did not cause severe pain or suffering did not constitute torture. Article 16
likewise inplied that certain forms of pressure could not be considered cruel

i nhuman or degrading treatnent.

5. Confronted with the persistence of terrorism the Israeli authorities
had no choice but to continue adopting effective investigative nethods in an
attenpt to prevent or at least limt such attacks. |In that regard, the

situation showed little inprovenent. Since 1993, the year the Osl o agreenent
had been signed, 244 Israelis had been killed. During the past year alone,

60 terrorist acts had been commtted in Israel, |eaving 27 people dead and
340 wounded. It nust be realized that the nunmber of victinms would be much
hi gher if the Security Service had not managed to prevent certain attacks. In

1997, three major terrorist cells had been exposed and di smantl ed; they had



CAT/ C/ SR. 336
page 4

pl anned murders, kidnappings, bus hijackings, attacks in public places, and
ot her acts. Through the use of noderate physical pressure - never torture or
cruel, inhuman or degrading treatnment - bl oodbat hs had been avoi ded.

6. Al though its views apparently differed fromthose of the Cormittee, the
I sraeli Government had neverthel ess taken careful note of its recomendati ons,
as sone devel opments showed. For exanple, since the previous My, the nunber
of conplaints | odged by detai nees who had undergone interrogati ons had
significantly di mnished. Furthernore, several |egal and admnistrative
remedi es, described in detail in the special report published as

CAT/ C/ 33/ Add. 2/ Rev. 1, were available to detainees. During the consideration
of that report, the Israeli delegation had explained the nature of the
procedure for judicial review of interrogation procedures, which allowed al
det ai nees who deenmed that they had not been properly treated during an
interrogation to submt a petition directly and i mmediately to the Suprene
Court sitting as a High Court of Justice. That right applied to all persons,
whet her or not Israeli, including residents of the territories. Since
apparently no such remedy existed in any other country, the Israel
authorities had been surprised that the Cormittee had not nentioned it inits
concl usi ons as one of the positive devel opnents.

7. The substance of the discussions with the Cormittee during the
presentation of the previous report had been brought to the attention of the
executive authorities and the judiciary. The H gh Court of Justice had
schedul ed for discussion a number of general petitions concerning

i nterrogati on procedures and had arranged that, exceptionally, nine judges
woul d preside over the hearing. That showed that the Court intended to give
particul ar prom nence to its decisions in that domain. Contrary to the clains
of non-governmental organizations, the Hi gh Court of Justice had never
condoned or permtted torture. The full proceedings in the Handan case had
been recounted in detail in the previous report; it should be remenbered that
the Supreme Court had determ ned that although maintaining the interim

i njunction was unjustifiable, the [ifting of that injunction did not authorize
the use against the petitioner of interrogation procedures that violated the

I aw.

8. Wth regard to new devel opnments in the |egislative sphere, the second
periodic report described in detail the General Security Service Bill; having
first been considered by the Knesset, it was now being studied by a
parliamentary commttee. It provided for the tightening of checks and
controls over the activities of the General Security Service, which would be
moni tored not only by a service conptroller and a State Conptroller, but also
by a mnisterial conmttee and a parliamentary comrttee to which reports
woul d be submtted every three nonths. O her |egislative reforns should al so
be pointed out: following up the enactnment of the Basic Law. Human Dignity
and Liberty, several provisions regarding arrest and detention had been
adopted, anmong themthe standing orders for the police and prisons service and
the Crimnal Procedure (Enforcenment Powers - Arrest and Detention) Law of
1996, which ensured maxi mum protection for the rights and liberties of a
person throughout the arrest and detention process. Meanwhile, the Kremitzer
Committee had published a report containing specific recommendations for the
prevention of acts of violence by police personnel and reconmendi ng
institutional as well as educational and disciplinary measures to mnim ze



CAT/ C/ SR. 336
page 5

police brutality. Various mechanisnms for reviewi ng the actions of |aw
enforcenent officials had been created, and were described in detail in the
report. The Police, the Prisons Service, the Ceneral Security Service and the
Def ence Forces were all subject to adm nistrative or |egal procedures.

9. In conclusion, it should be renenbered that all Israel's reports,
together with the statenments of the Israeli delegation before the Conmittee,
shoul d be considered as an integrated whole. He hoped that the nenbers of the
Committee woul d give due consideration to all those elements, and would focus
on the legal and practical dilemma faced by Israel in its inplenmentation of
the Convention. He was confident that an exchange of views with the Commttee
and a constructive analysis conducted by the Conmittee in good faith would
assist the Israeli authorities in their efforts to achieve the goals of the
Conventi on.

10. The CHAI RMAN (Rapporteur for Israel) thanked M. Baker for his
introductory statenment. Referring to the consideration of Israel’s previous
report, he recalled that the Comm ttee had asked the del egati on a nunber of
speci fic questions which it had refused to answer, invoking security reasons;
that was what had pronpted the Committee to base its determ nations on the
reports of non-governnental organizations. Speaking in his capacity as
Rapporteur, he observed that the second periodic report of Israe
(CAT/ C/ 33/ Add. 3), due in November 1996, had not been received unti

6 March 1998. In its conclusions on the special report dated 18 February 1996
(CAT/ C/ 33/ Add. 2/ Rev. 1), the Commttee had asked Israel to subnmit, along with
its second periodic report, information concerning any neasures it had taken
in response to the Conmttee's conclusions and recomendati ons, for

consi deration during the Novenber 1997 session

11. The Committee took note with satisfaction of the reforns set forth in
the Basic Law. Human Dignity and Liberty, the General Security Service Bill,
the proposals of the Kremmitzer Committee, the creation of a national public
defender's office, and the recomendati ons of the CGoldberg Commttee. Wth
regard to the Basic Law. Human Dignity and Liberty, he noted that

two derogations were possible, and asked for clarifications on that matter, in
particul ar, whether a state of energency had been put into effect since the
founding of the State of Israel. He would also like clarifications on the

rul es of evidence, since paragraph 89 of the report referred to
“recommendati ons ainmed at ensuring that fal se confessions were not extracted

by illegal neans”. He would like to know what was neant, in paragraph 91, by
the words “real violence”. An explanation of the |ast clause, “independent
evi dence of guilt that was discovered by an i nadm ssible confession will stil
be adm ssible”, would al so be wel cone. Al t hough the information provided

concerning the reformof the CGeneral Security Service was indeed interesting,
the question arose whether a security official who acted in conformty with
the law could hinself be held accountable. It would also be useful to know
the nature and scope of administrative detention in Israel, in the occupied
territories and perhaps in South Lebanon, the |egal basis for that

adm ni strative measure and its maximumterm Could a suspect be detai ned

i ncommuni cado, and for how long? Was it true that a Lebanese detai nee had
been held for 11 years wi thout being charged? According to information
available to the Cormittee, that detainee had been arrested not because he had
constituted a danger to the security of the State but as a bargaining counter



CAT/ C/ SR. 336
page 6

That case, if true, required an explanation under article 16 of the
Convention. The Commttee would like to know how many persons were currently
held in adm nistrative detention, to what popul ati on group they bel onged, and
whet her they had access to a judicial review procedure, and in particular
recourse to habeas corpus.

12. Par agr aphs 58 and 64 of the report seened to contain contradictory

i nformati on, stating on the one hand that, on the arrest of any person
notification nust be nade to a relative or to another person close to the
detai nee, and on the other that until recently the | aw had not granted

pri soners and detainees the right to tel ephone. Since the enactnent of the
Crimnal Procedure Law of 1996, did detainees have the right to use a

tel ephone imedi ately after their arrest? Did access to a tel ephone depend on
whet her or not the detainee had been charged?

13. Returning to the matter of the severity of the pain, he said that the
Committee was not satisfied with being assured by a country del egati on that
acts inflicted on a person never caused pain severe enough to constitute
torture. It was the Commttee which had to nmake up its mind on that question
and therein lay the whole problem during the consideration of the previous
report, the del egation had refused, for security reasons, to indicate what

met hods were used. The Committee had consequently been obliged to base its
determ nations on testinmony gathered from persons who had undergone

i nterrogation, and on reports drawn up by NGOs. The Conmittee was now in a
position to declare with full know edge of the facts, on the basis of its

di scussions with the Israeli delegation and a number of decisions handed down
in Israel, that sonme interrogation procedures used by the General Security
Servi ce, such as hooding prisoners, depriving themof sleep by exposing them
to loud nmusic, restraining themin painful positions, and shaking them
violently, indeed violated articles 16 and 2 of the Convention, a fortiori if
t hose net hods were used in conbination. The Committee had al so | earned that
the use of those nmethods was not unusual, nor pronpted by necessity in

i sol ated cases, since the Israeli authorities did not consider themto be
cruel, inhuman or degrading treatnment within the neaning of article 16 of the
Convention. That, therefore, was the new starting point for the continuation
of the dial ogue between the Israeli delegation and the Conmittee.

14. M. SARENSEN (Alternate Rapporteur for Israel) said his first concern
woul d be the inplementation of article 10 of the Convention (paragraphs 28 to
31 of the report). Regarding police officials, he inquired whether the
content of article 1 was taught to them during training and whet her

i nvestigatory nmethods were taught in entry-level or only in continuing
education courses. What training was provided to nenbers of the Genera
Security Service?

15. It would be useful to know how prison guards were recruited, what prior
education they had received, and whether they were given general human rights
training. The education of doctors was no | ess inmportant, since unfortunately
some of them helped to “refine” torture nethods used during interrogations.
They must also learn to recogni ze possible signs or after-effects of torture
on the bodies of their patients.



CAT/ C/ SR. 336
page 7

16. The neasures adopted by the Israeli authorities to inplenent the

provi sions of article 11 of the Convention, which provided that States parties
shoul d keep under systematic review interrogation rules, instructions, methods
and practices, were described in detail in the report. Paragraph 33 indicated
that the State Conptroller, in his conclusions on the activities of the GSS

i nvestigative unit from 1990 to 1992, had noted several instances of
deviations fromthe Landau Comm ssion's gui delines, and had recomrended
measures to ensure conpliance. Could the Conmittee obtain a copy of that
report? The sane paragraph stated that the Conptroller’s findings had not yet
been made public; did that mean that they would be nade so eventually? He
reiterated the Commttee's wi sh that the Landau Commi ssion's secret guidelines
shoul d be nmade public.

17. Paragraphs 34, 35 and 36 of the report dealt with the mnisterial reviews
instituted in conformty with the reconmendati ons of the Landau Commi ssion and
conducted periodically with regard to GSS interrogation guidelines. He found
it sonmewhat surprising that the special Mnisterial Conmttee should be headed
by the Prime Mnister, who probably had very little time to devote to that
task. In accordance with the recommendati ons of the Mnisterial Commttee,
new gui del i nes for GSS investigators had been published which clearly
established the need to specify, in every case, the purpose and justification
for the use of limted pressure. In his view, an investigator nust find it
very difficult to remain always within the law with regard to the nethods
used, since the guidelines were kept secret and also periodically revised.

In that regard, the Commttee would like to know by what procedure an

i nvesti gator who had contravened those confidential guidelines could be
summoned to appear before a court. It would also |ike an explanation
concerning the use of “exceptional nmethods” in situations in which vita

i nformati on was conceal ed. Paragraph 35 of the report also indicated that it
was expressly forbidden to deny food or drink to suspects or to refuse them
perm ssion to go to the lavatory. |If that was so, what about sl eep
deprivation?

18. Wth regard to the duration of solitary confinement, which according to
par agr aph 55 could be extended for additional periods up to a total of

14 days, he would like to know if that reginme could be inposed on a detainee
frequently - nore specifically, whether it could be inmposed every nonth.

19. Par agraph 58 indicated that upon the arrest of any person, notification
must be nmade to a relative or other person close to the detainee regarding the
fact of the arrest and the place of detention. Should it therefore be

concl uded that incomunicado detention did not exist? Did detainees have the
right to conmmunicate with a | awer, and to be seen by a doctor of their

choice, fromthe start of their detention? Wth regard to visiting rights, he
woul d I'ike to know the maxi mum |l ength of a visit for convicted prisoners,
since only one visit was authorized every two nonths.

20. Turning to the inplementation of articles 12 and 13 of the Convention
he inqui red whet her conpl aints about m streatnment by GSS investigators, which
were considered by the Departnment for Investigation of Police Personne
(DIPP), were reviewed by any other service before being subnmtted to DI PP



CAT/ C/ SR. 336
page 8

The Conmittee would like to know how many nmenbers of the GSS had been brought
to trial as a result of investigations, during 1995 and 1996, for exanple,
whet her they had been convicted, and the nature of the sentence.

21. Wth regard to article 14, clarifications would be useful concerning a
new bill submitted to the Knesset whose effect would apparently be to restrict
t he possi bl e grounds for conpensation, and in particular to abolish it for
victinms suffering froma disability of |ess than 10 per cent; noreover, that
provi sion would be retroactive. He wondered whether such a | aw woul d not be

i ncompatible with the terns of article 14.

22. Wth regard to Israel’s response to the concl usions and recomendati ons
formul ated by the Conmittee at its previous session (A/52/44, paragraphs 253
to 260), he would like to offer his point of view as a nedical doctor who had
been concerned, since 1984, with matters relating to torture, had exam ned
many victims, and had visited police stations and prisons, including sonme
where torture was practised. Since 1994, the Conmittee had mai ntai ned the
view that the “Landau rul es” could and probably would allow torture to be
practised within the nmeaning of article 1 of the Convention. In 1997, the
Conmittee had had to conclude that its fears had been well founded. It had,
he nmust add, been wrong at that tinme to refer (in paragraph 257 of its annua
report) solely to information from non-governnental organi zations and to
testi mony from persons who had been interrogated, since the Hi gh Court had
itself taken note, for exanple, of the use of sleep deprivation. High Court
docunents relating to the Ghani mat case (HCJ 3282/97) reveal ed that

M. Ghani mat had been restrained in very painful positions for prol onged

peri ods; a nedical report addressed to the High Court by an em nent

ort hopaedi st indicated that restraining himwth his knees tightly bent had
caused pai nful and disabling lesions. An internationally renowned neurol ogi st
who had al so exam ned M. Chaninmat had certified that his allegations, to the
effect that his hands and feet had been very tightly shackled, were
corroborated by the nedical exam nation which reveal ed a permanent |ocal |oss
of sensation. Those forns of treatnment fitted the three criteria set out in
article 1 of the Convention: they undoubtedly caused severe suffering, they
were intentionally inflicted (as recognized by the authorities thenselves) for
t he purpose of obtaining information, and they were inflicted by public

of ficials.

23. The Israeli authorities had given a reason for hoodi ng detai nees; but
the fact remai ned that putting soneone’s head in a bag for six hours on end,
as had been the case with M. Ghanimat, inflicted, froma nedical point of
view, severe nental suffering, and there were other ways of keeping a detainee
fromcomunicating with others. That treatnment had been inflicted on him
intentionally, for the purpose of quickly extorting a confession. The report
under consideration showed that M. Saba had been subjected to the same
treatment.

24. I n paragraph 49 of the report and el sewhere, the Israeli Governnent

i nvoked necessity to justify depriving a detainee of sleep. But torture was
not authorized even in energency situations; M. Ghani mat had been permtted
to sleep for about one hour in 24 over the course of 4 days, which froma

medi cal point of view constituted torture. In another case brought before the
Hi gh Court (HCJ 2210/96), the detainee had been kept awake for 39 hours



CAT/ C/ SR. 336
page 9

foll owed by 5 hours' rest, then for 47 hours with 2 hours' rest, and then for
22 hours with 5 hours' rest, 47 hours with 5 hours' rest, 46 hours with

5 hours' rest, and finally 48 hours with 6 hours' rest. The situation had
per haps been urgent, but that unquestionably constituted nental torture.

25. VWolly reliable sources indicated that in sone 6,000 to 8,000 cases

the GSS had resorted to the procedure that consisted in violently shaking

t he detai nee. He had spoken of that practice at |ength during the

ei ghteenth session, denonstrating that such treatnent caused severe suffering
and was of course inflicted intentionally and for the purpose of obtaining

i nformati on. That being so, and contrary to what was said in paragraph 49 of
the report, the neasures in question were indeed fornms of torture. The
guestion of the threshold beyond which suffering could be considered severe
had al so been discussed in 1997, and in the view of many nedical experts of
the highest |evel of conpetence that threshold had been passed in all the
cases in question. The Israeli authorities acknow edged that such procedures
were inflicted intentionally by public officials with a view to obtaining

i nformati on; once again, there was no doubt that those cases fell within the
meani ng of article 1 of the Convention. The nethods in question were used by
menbers of the GSS, who were undoubtedly normal human bei ngs but worked under
terrible conditions in which attacks were planned, secret instructions were
continually nodified, and they were expected to conply with the | aw while at
the sane time being officially or unofficially authorized to violate it in
order to get results. He understood their difficult situation and fully
recogni zed that they were fighting agai nst the abom nabl e phenonenon of
terrorism but they must do so by legitimte nmeans and not by torture.

26. The first witten | aw of Denmark, his country of nationality, had
proclainmed as early as 1241 that the country would be built on the rule of
law. Israel, a country celebrating its fiftieth anniversary and still being

built, should not put its officials in such a terrible situation. Politica
probl ems should be resolved not by torture but by negotiation. The year 1998
was also the fiftieth anniversary of the Universal Declaration of Human

Ri ghts, and in Decenber 1997 the General Assenbly had deci ded by consensus to
declare 26 June the International Day in Support of Victims of Torture. To
mark those three events, Israel should consider nmaeking the declarations

provi ded for under articles 21 and 22 of the Convention, withdrawing its
reservation to article 20, and making a larger contribution to the

United Nations Voluntary Fund for Victins of Torture. During the Second Wrld
War, he had synpathized with the plight of the Jews and tried to hel p ease
their sufferings; since that tinme, the Dani sh people had cared deeply about
their fate. He therefore continued to hope that Israel would inplenment the
Conmittee’ s recommendati ons.

27. The CHAI RMAN, speaking in his capacity as Rapporteur for Israel, said he
wi shed to raise a different kind of question. |Israel apparently applied a
dualistic system which required a |legislative enactnment for an internationa
instrument to be effectively incorporated into donestic law, a step which had
not been taken in the case of the Convention against Torture. That was surely
the reason why so many interiminjunction applications, addressed to the
Suprene Court sitting as a High Court on behalf of detainees requesting that
the GSS should not be permtted to apply the “Landau rules” to them had
pronpt ed deci sions based on the |l egal notion of state of necessity, one of the




CAT/ C/ SR. 336
page 10

argunments often invoked being that since the “Landau rul es” themsel ves were
based on the notion of necessity, the application of those rules by the GSS
was thereby justified. |In that context, he would |ike to know whet her under
Israeli |aw the “noderate physical pressure” which those rules permtted was
consi dered as justifiable assault or as a practice wholly in conformty with
the law. Centuries had passed since the poet MIton had witten, “Necessity
is the tyrant’s plea”.

28. M. EL MASRY said that he was glad the matter of necessity had been

rai sed, and that he was quite unconvinced by the explanations offered. |If

I srael no |longer based its use of the “Landau rules” on the principle of
necessity, howdid it justify it? What could be the rationale for permtting
i nvestigators to violate the Penal Law by, for example, shaking soneone to
death? That was a crucial and very troubling matter, since torture was
therefore in fact part of the Israeli |egal arsenal and had been codified as a
| egal practice.

29. Paragraph 5 of the report stated that |aws which ran counter to the
provi sions of the Basic Law prohibiting violation of the life, body or dignity
of persons but had been enacted prior to it could not be deemed void. It was

neverthel ess stated that such | aws would be interpreted in accordance with
those fundamental principles: was that nmerely the view of the author of the
report, or was it a binding rule? For exanple, was the notorious practice of
destroying the homes of the famlies of persons accused of a terrorist act,
whi ch was an extrajudicial punishnment and a di ssuasive neasure, considered a
vi ol ati on of the Basic Law?

30. The revisions to the Penal Law described in paragraph 27 of the report
could not have an effect on the practice of torture for so long as it was not
classified as a separate, punishable crime. For so long as the current
interrogation practices enjoyed official support, such provisions would not
make it possible either to dissuade or to punish the torturers. Furthernore,
par agraphs 32 to 51 of the report described a systemthat had been set in
place to allow Parlianent and the Government to review interrogation
practices. Had that nechani smever questioned the legality and |egitinmcy of
the interrogation procedures, or was it limted to review ng deviations from
the Landau Commi ssion’ s gui del i nes?

31. Par agraph 75 of the report provided a great deal of statistical data.
He would |ike to know whet her any GSS officials had yet been prosecuted for
of fences committed in the performance of their functions. 1In 1995,

Abd al - Samad Harizat had died after having been violently shaken by a

GSS official: had crimnal proceedi ngs been taken against him and had the
prohi bition of that “torture method” been consi dered? Were detainees given a
medi cal exam nation before being subjected to that treatment, and was the

i nterrogation conducted in the presence of a nedical doctor?

32. Wth regard to the treatnment of detainees and prisoners (paragraphs 52
to 69 of the report), he understood that Pal estinian detai nees were deprived
of certain rights: did detainees who were in the hands of the GSS enjoy the
right to have visitors, to receive mail, to use a tel ephone, and to neet with
a lawer? According to some sources, Palestinians detained in those occupied
territories subject to mlitary authority were sometimes pernmitted no contact



CAT/ C/ SR. 336
page 11

with the outside world for as long as 90 days, which, if that information was
correct, was far too long. He would therefore |like to know the real facts of
the situation and have detailed information about the I|iving conditions of

Pal esti ni an det ai nees, which according to some sources were depl orable.

33. M. Sgrensen had nmentioned the fiftieth anniversary of the creation of
Israel; 1998 also marked the fiftieth anniversary of the Nakba, the great

Pal esti ni an “catastrophe”, showing the truth of the saying that one man's joy
was another man's sorrow. For half a century, tens of thousands of uprooted
people had |ived in abom nable conditions without the right to return hone,
whi ch constituted a flagrant violation of their human rights and a continua
torture.

34. The CHAI RMAN remarked that that was a very broad use of the concept of
torture.

35. M . CAMARA associated hinmself with the questions raised by the
Rapporteur and the Alternate Rapporteur. Wth regard to the matter of the
adm ssibility of evidence, he inquired what had been the practical outcone of
the recomrendati ons of the Gol dberg Cormmittee. Furthernore, he would like to
know t he status of the amendnent to the Evidence Ordonnance [New Version],
1971, that was being prepared by the Mnistry of Justice, according to
paragraph 90. Had a draft law to that effect been tabled, and if so, on

what date? At what stage of consideration was it? He would also like
clarifications concerning the |ast sentence in the report, which stated that
i ndependent evi dence of guilt that was discovered by an i nadm ssible
confession was still adm ssible.

36. M. MAVROVMATI S congratul ated the State party on the occasion of the
fiftieth anniversary of its independence, and offered his best w shes for
peace in that region

37. The State party’s introductory statement presented a | arge nunber of
clarifications concerning both the previous report and the report under
consideration. Wth regard to the argunment invoking a situation of necessity,
he reiterated his view that nothing could justify torture or maltreatnent.
The Committee was aware of the difficulties faced by the State party owing to
the violence and terrorismdirected against it, which all agreed in
condemmi ng. However, while the State party could and nust take neasures to
fight terrorismand protect itself therefrom it must do so without resorting
to met hods which, by consenting to becone a party to the Convention agai nst
Torture, it had pledged itself not to use. Resorting to the use of force and
to practices that were prohibited both by the Convention agai nst Torture and
by the International Covenant on Civil and Political Ri ghts would | ead
nowher e.

38. Under the current circunstances, consideration should perhaps be given
to requiring the routine presence of a judge during interrogations. He would
like to know how interrogati ons were conducted; once force was resorted to,
the burden of proof fell upon those whose practices were chall enged, not on

t hose who conpl ai ned of the methods used.



CAT/ C/ SR. 336
page 12

39. He was pleased that the State party had agreed to nmove forward the date
of the consideration of its second periodic report; he was confident that the
State party would accord attention to the Cormittee’s observations, and that
the di al ogue could prove fruitful. He urged the State party to nake the

decl aration provided under article 22 of the Convention, which would be one of
the best ways of showing that it was conmitted to transparency and rejected
the use of illegal methods.

40. Referring to article 4 of the Convention, he noted that the death
penalty or a mandatory |ife sentence could be applied which would exclude the
possibility of appeal; clarifications on that matter would be wel cone.

41. He wel comed the very detailed statistical information. |n paragraph 82
of the report, he noted a disparity between the nunmber of conplaints filed for
mal treatment on the part of the GSS and the nunber of times that proceedings
had I ed to penal sanction. Lastly, with regard to article 15, he was
disturbed to learn that independent evidence of guilt that was di scovered by
an i nadm ssible confession was still adm ssible.

42. M. YAKOVLEV said he was disturbed that the Israeli delegation had, in
its introduction, broached the notion of the severity of any suffering
inflicted. Wthin the context of articles 1 and 16 of the Convention, the
notion of relativity in a matter of principle opened the door to excesses of
every Kkind.

43. The CHAIRMAN invited the delegation to reply to the Comrittee’'s
guestions at the next neeting.

44, The Israeli delegation wthdrew

The first part (public) of the neeting rose at 12.30 a. m




